FORT MEADE, MD

SP0600-04-R-0048

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS SESSION

June 18, 2004


Wastewater Questions:

1. Has the Tank Park Sewage Pumping Station been replaced by the Army since 1997?

ANSWER:  Yes. 

2. Are the manholes located next to building structures in Fort Meade typically constructed of brick or concrete?

ANSWER:  There is a mix.  No specific breakdown, but the older ones are predominately brick and the newer ones are concrete.

3. J02.8:  Is the Contractor responsible for the pipe from the D.C. Children's Center to the Fort Meade boundary?

ANSWER:   Yes

Additional Question.  Should money be included in the proposal for this?

ANSWER:  Yes

4.  How will NSA pre-treatment plant effluent exceedances flowing to the WWTP be handled?  Are there any dangerous spill scenarios we need to take into account?

ANSWER:   a.  There is a pretreatment agreement with the state.  NSA operates plant and reports to Fort on a monthly basis.  Reports are public and available for review.  b.  No dangerous spill scenarios have been noticed.

5.  Does the Post have a spill contingency plan and when will a copy be made available?

ANSWER:  Yes.  Information can be found in technical package provided via disk.

6.  The approximately 20,000 LF of collection pipe at NSA is included in the inventory.  Will this be part of the UP?

ANSWER:  Yes.  Information can be found at J02 in the RFP.

7.  Water inventory adjustment, page 3 J02.2.1.2 implies no joint inventory adjustment after award with system transfer in an “as is, where is” condition.  Will DESC use the same verbiage as with AF bases? 

ANSWER:  No.  The successful offeror will be provided with a true up if deemed necessary.

8.  Is the Airport Lift Station (LS) still operational?

ANSWER:  Yes and it is a part of the system for both water and wastewater, but it is a non-DoD entity.

9.  Section J02.2.2, Table 3, lists grease traps that area to be part of the UP.  What is the unit of measure for the size and what does GL stand for in the table?

ANSWER:  The unit of measure is gallons (GL).

10.  This same list also includes WWTP #6 and WWTP #2.  What types of buildings are WWTP #6 and #2?  What is the characteristic of the flows from each of these?

ANSWER:  More information to be provided 

11.  When will the information referenced to in section J05, Miscellaneous Files, be furnished, specifically the Future MCA projects?

ANSWER:  Information can be found in technical package provided via disk.

12.  Will the 5-year plan be made available or be in the technical library? 

ANSWER:  Information can be found in technical package provided via disk and hard copy.

13.  How many of the residential and industrial services have clean outs and what are the sizes?

ANSWER: a.  Information is not available at this time.  

b. Sizes:  Residential – Standard 4” Industrial – 8-10”

14.  What are the sizes of the pumps (HP) of the LS?

ANSWER:  

110 HP = P-48

10 HP = 6TH CAV, TANK PARK

7.5 HP = O’BRIEN

7 HP = 6328, G-60

5 HP = 97TH ARCOM

40 HP = 4273

=< 2 HP = REMAINING STATIONS

16.  How will utility consumption be handled?  Will it be excluded until the actual electric, gas and water consumptions are known when the successful bidder takes control of the facilities or will this information be furnished prior to submitting bids?

ANSWER:  Recommend that cost not be included in the proposals at this time.


17.  Will the current grease trap maintenance contract be continued?  If not, who is the current contract with and what is the cost of maintenance?

ANSWER:   Further information will be provided.
18.  Have there been any NOV's in the past two years?  If so, will copies of these be furnished and have these been addressed and remedied?

ANSWER:   No

20.  Has there been any system I&I, line TVed or flow capacity studies completed within the past three or four years and will these reports be made available?

ANSWER:   Records not available and no testing permission granted.

Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP):

21. When was the Excess Holding Tank (i.e., Equalization Tank) that was installed in 1997 last used?  What are the dimensions of this tank?

ANSWER: a.  Installation is unsure of date last used.  b.  700,000 GALLON 

22. It was reported that the biological nutrient removal (BNR) upgrade of 1983 caused the WWTP to lose the aeration tank redundancy.  How has that affected process performance?

ANSWER: Per A&E Study, Average dry weather design capacity has been reduced from (4.5) TO (2.2 - 2.3) MDG.  URS study provided in technical information.

23. What are typical total nitrogen (TN), total orthophosphate, and total phosphorus (TP) concentrations in the influent?  

ANSWER:  Sampling will take place by firm contracted by installation.  Results will be provided.  Request made by Anne Arundel via email on June 21, 2004.  WSSC concurs with request.

24. What are typical influent ammonia and organic nitrogen concentrations?

ANSWER:   Sampling will take place by firm contracted by installation.  Results will be provided.  Request made by Anne Arundel via email on June 21, 2004.  WSSC concurs with request.

25. What are typical alkalinity concentrations in the influent?

ANSWER:  Sampling will take place by firm contracted by installation.  Results will be provided.  Request made by Anne Arundel via email on June 21, 2004.  WSSC concurs with request.

26. Why is more sludge generated in the winter than the summer?

ANSWER:   Unknown

27. Has the plant ever been operated without lime addition? If so, what was the difference in process performance?

ANSWER:  No.  

28. The WWTP reportedly has low biological oxygen demand (BOD) in the influent.  What are typical influent values, and primary effluent values?

ANSWER:   Sampling will take place by firm contracted by installation.  Results will be provided.  Request made by Anne Arundel via email on June 21, 2004.  WSSC concurs with request.

29. Do the aerators work well in the aeration zones, and do the mixers work well in the anoxic zones? What has been the routine maintenance on the aerators and mixers? 

ANSWER: Aerators, mixers and all equipment and valves are operational.

30. What is the size, in gallons, of the methanol tank?

ANSWER: 5,000 Gallons

31. Is the chlorine and dechlorination automated?  If not, how do you adjust the dose?

ANSWER:  a.  No. The sewage pumping stations and wastewater pumping station are not automated with SCADA or equivalent.  b. Adjustments made manually by the plant operator.

32. Is there an underground storage tank (UST) in the Chlorine Building?  If so, what is it there for?

ANSWER: No

33. What are the sulfuric acid storage tanks used for?

ANSWER: HCL tank and it is out of service and not available.

34. May we take an influent and primary effluent sample? If yes how do I coordinate getting it done (will most likely contract it)?

ANSWER:  Sampling will take place by firm contracted by installation.  Results will be provided.  Request made by Anne Arundel via email on June 21, 2004.  WSSC concurs with request.
35. Is there any historical value to the water treatment plant structure or structures such that the buildings could not be demolished?

ANSWER:  Yes.  It is on the Maryland Register.  Must receive a waiver from SHPO to modify or enhance facility.  

East Side Pumping Station:

36. How often has there been an overspill into Soldiers Lake?

ANSWER: None

37. How often do you have a variable frequency drive (VFD) failure?

ANSWER: All variable frequency drives have been replaced within the last 3 years.

38.  Is there redundancy in the pumps, and if so, what is it?

ANSWER: a.  Yes. b.  3 Pump Operation

39. Has the leachate from the Fort Meade landfill that flows into the East Side Pumping Station been evaluated?  What is typically dumped at the landfill?

ANSWER: The landfill is not active.

40. Is the underground storage tank (UST) for fuel?  What is the capacity of the UST?

ANSWER: a.  Yes, it is for diesel fuel.  b. No information available at this time.

41. There is reportedly a grease problem at the East Side Pumping Station.  Where does the grease come from, and what has been done?

ANSWER:  The grease comes from the residential housing, the dining facilities and other restaurant type facilities.  b.  The only thing that can be done is to educate residents on exposure of grease and increase the frequency of pumping the grease.  

42. Water Supply - Is there still the requirement as listed in J06 to provide two additional independent water sources?  I only ask because the Solicitation indicates water supply is not included, and I seem to recall a statement at the PPC that that requirement was going to be removed. 

ANSWER:  Yes, two additional water sources are required.  b.  The commodity is not a part of the solicitation.

43.  Missing J Attachments - J07 Water Chemistry Requirements is not available on line.  Is that going to be made available before a contractor is chosen?  Also, J09 and J10 are not posted, is there such an attachment?

ANSWER:  Attachment J07, J09 and J10 are not posted to the website due to the sensitivity of the information.  This information has been provided in the technical information and made available by making a request to DESC-EC.

44.  J01-2 - Is the dam included as an asset of the Meade system?  Unclear from solicitation.  Also, would the Contractor be responsible for obtaining the Withdrawal permit? 

ANSWER:   Further information will be provided.

45.  Does the future demand data include estimated future demand from NSA?  

ANSWER:  Information is provided on technical disk, further information will be provided by installation personnel.

46.  Is it correct to assume the NSA system is included since its assets are listed in Table 1B? 

ANSWER:  Yes.

47.  Is it correct to assume Meade is requesting meters be installed for every non-housing facility on Base? Table 5 and part 4 of Att. J05 do not appear to match.  Is there any information on age or size of meters?  Also, does Meade intend the successful Contractor to assume ownership of the meters listed as belonging to AA County?

ANSWER:  a.  All DoD buildings will be required to be metered. b. A list of all buildings will be provided by installation personnel.  

48.  Off Installation Sites - is provision of water and treatment of sewer the only requirement, or is the distribution and collection system included as well? 

ANSWER:  Yes, the distribution and collection systems are included.

49.  MCA project list - are we supposed to include the footage indicated for these projects as part of the proposal, or is this part of the privatized system that we would that negotiate separately?   What does MCA stand for? 

ANSWER:  The MCA projects are not included with the privatization, but will be negotiated and included when the project is completed, unless the MCA project completion occurs prior to privatization contract award, then it should be negotiated into the contract.  MCA stands for Military Construction Army.

50.  Is it the intent of the Solicitation that the successful Contractor would negotiate separately with each of the numerous non-DOD facilities located within the Base for the provision of water and sewer services, i.e. public schools, EPA, Sarah's house, etc.

ANSWER:  This answer needs to be clarified a bit further and will be done so by the installation.  

If Fort Meade currently bills the facilities for the service (or provides it gratis) no separate arrangement will have to be made.  However, if any facility gets it service from anyone other than Fort Meade, separate arrangements will have to be made.

51.  The two tanks at Chaffee Hill are located with the gates of NSA.  Since these tanks were not visible, request that pictures be taken of these two Ground Storage Tanks and the dimensions be provided on the web in response to this question.

ANSWER:  No.  Pictures cannot be taken.  b.  Dimensions are located in data provided.

52.  Was a complete lead abatement accomplished on all seven tanks when they were painted in 1996?  Was the interior of the tanks blasted prior to repainting?

ANSWER:  Yes to both questions.

53.  Please provide the following dimensions for each of the 7 tanks:


3 Ground Storage Tanks- Diameter & Height


4 Elevated Tanks- Riser Diameter & Height (Low Water Level)




    - Leg Diameter




    - Tank Height

ANSWER:  Information is provided in technical information.  

Additional question.  Are there any current antenna structures that would be retained?  

ANSWER:  No.

54. Are there any plans to replace any of these 7 tanks?

ANSWER:  No

55.  Will the government provide an appropriate building with adjoining land for the contractor’s use as a service center or will the government provide a site only and require the contractor to construct a service center?

ANSWER:  Space will be provided by the installation.   Currently, there is adequate space at the plants.

56.  The response to question number 23 in Question and Answer I indicates that a “majority” of the potable water processed is being drawn from the wells.  Can this valued be quantified (a MGD value)?  Attachment J01 indicates that the ground water permit allows a 2 MGD withdrawal (page J01-2).  The average daily capacity of the plant is 3.4 MGD (page J01-3).

ANSWER:  The figures stated on Attachment J01 are correct.  Fort Meade exceeded their daily average draw of well water set at 2MGD by the Water Appropriation and Use Act.  Fort Meade has several permits for drawing water.  Permit condition (17) Supplemental permit states, that “This permit and following permits are supplemental to each other.  Total withdrawals under this permit and the following listed permit(s) shall not exceed their combined total permitted withdrawal…”  The permits are supplemental to each other therefore Fort Mead can withdraw a total of 7.2 million gallons on daily average.

WATER QUESTIONS:

57.  Are there 5 or 6 active wells?  6 wells are shown in Figure 2.1.2, 5 are listed in Table 1A.  Per water plant personnel, one may be permanently out of service.

ANSWER:  There are 6 active wells.

58.  Is the hanger GST which is fed off the Tipton distribution field, is shown in figure 2.1.2 as part of the water system and is part of zone #2, also part of the UP contract?

ANSWER:  This hanger belongs to Anne Arundel County.

59.  Current system demand is near current well permit limits.  Has the Post approached the State for an approved increase in withdrawal volume and rates?  If so, what was their response?  Wells have 8 MGD rating but permit limit is 2 MGD.  

ANSWER:  See question # 56

60.  In the event a new well is needed, is there a suitable location on the base or adjoining Dept of Interior land?

ANSWER:  Unknown

61.  Where are the pumps that supply pressure zones #3 and #4 and are connected to GSTs actually located?

ANSWER:  This information can be found at Figure 2.1.2.  

Annapolis Hill



Chafee Hill
Building 1957



Building 8900 (built in 1958)

2 operable pumps


2 operable pumps

62.  What PS is in building #8699?

ANSWER:  High Lift Pumping Station #2

63.  Where is the booster pump station actually located and where does it draw water from?  If it draws from surface water, how is it tied into the LLPS piping?

ANSWER:  a. This information can be found at Figure 2.1.2

b. This information can be found at Figure 2.1.2

64.  Do we still need all the elevated tanks and pressure zones?  Has a recent hydraulic analysis been performed?  The system appears to be patchwork unless a recent hydraulic analysis shows differently or NSA has some extra special issues.

ANSWER:  a.  Unknown.  b. No

65.  How many meters are read how often?  1251 building services are listed.

ANSWER:  Information regarding meters need to be provided by installation personnel, along with all buildings that have meters on them.  

66.  What are the sizes of the 42 meters listed in Table 5, section J01.4.1, existing secondary meters?

ANSWER:  Unknown at this time.

67.  When will a copy of the most recent Maryland Health Department annual inspection report and most recent filter media study be made available?

ANSWER:  Most recent inspection was done in 2002 by Maryland Environmental Department (MED).  Report has not been received.

68.  How will future tie-ins to the system be handled and controlled?

ANSWER:  Army will discuss with DESC and Non-DoD will negotiate individually with successful offeror.

69.  Will the cost of annual chemical usage be made available?

ANSWER:  Estimated quantity is unknown at this time.  

70.  Have there been any system hydraulic or leak studies completed within the past three or four years and will these reports be made available?

ANSWER:  No

Other:

71. Are copies of the Risk Management Plans and Process Safety Management Plans available?

ANSWER:  Environmental Office will provide and Standard Operating Procedures will be made available.

